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LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license or certificate as they relate to safety and/or 
safeguards and to compliance with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license 
or certificate.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, 
and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows: 

 1.  Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified. 

 2.  Previous violation(s) closed. 

 3.  Reported events reviewed 

 

4.  The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being 
cited because they were self-identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the 
remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise discretion, were satisfied. 
Non-Cited Violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 

 

5.  During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of 
NRC requirements and are being cited. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to 
posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. 
(Violations and Corrective Actions) 

 

LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FOR ITEM 5, ABOVE 
 

 I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the inspector will be taken to correct the violation(s) identified.  This 
statement of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective 
steps which will be taken, date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to the NRC will be 
required, unless specifically requested. 

Title Printed Name Signature Date 

LICENSEE/CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

   

NRC INSPECTOR C. Cramer, A. Gooden, O. Lopez D. Hartland for 11/26/08 
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6.  INSPECTOR(S): C. Cramer, A. Gooden, O. Lopez 

7.  INSPECTION PROCEDURES USED:   88010, 88030, 88045, 88055 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Summary of Plant Status 
 
The licensee performed routine maintenance and testing activities throughout the inspection period. 
 
Fire Protection (88055) 
 
• Combustible materials and ignition sources were controlled in accordance with procedures and fire safety 

requirements. 
 
• No safety problems were identified with respect to the implementation of the impairment permit program. 
 
• The inspectors reviewed the Building X-3001 survey for calendar year 2007 and noted that the information 

contained in the building survey was sufficient to support the facility’s integrated safety analysis. 
 
• The inspectors reviewed maintenance records and walked down selected components of the fire detection 

system and noted that they were maintained properly. 
 
• The inspectors walked down sections of the sprinkler systems. Sprinklers were not obstructed and the 

water supply to the systems was readily available with correct valve positioning and pumping capability. 
 
Radiation Protection (88030) 
 
• Program audits and assessments were effectively performed to ensure that the radiation protection 

program was being implemented in accordance with the license. The assessments were also effective in 
the identification of negative trends and contributors to personnel exposures. 

 
• Instruments and equipment selected for review operated as designed and were appropriate for the type 

and intensity of radiation measured. 
 
• Occupational exposures were significantly less than limits in 10 CFR 20.1201.  Maximally assigned total 

effective dose equivalent for calendar years 2006 and 2007 was one percent of the limit in 10 CFR 
20.1201. 

 
• The respiratory protection program was implemented in a manner that ensured only authorized users were 

provided respiratory protection when required. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Continued) 
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• The inspectors performed independent surveys to determine if area radiation postings were correct based 
on radiation levels measured. No problems were noted with postings. Regarding posting of information as 
required by 10 CFR 19.11, select locations were inspected to verify that the appropriate information was 
posted and no problems were noted. 

 
• Based on performance by contamination survey personnel and a review of the survey documentation, the 

surveys were performed in accordance with procedures and adequately implemented to protect workers 
and identify potential radiation hazard areas. Workers were cognizant of the active radiation work permits 
and current radiation and contamination survey maps were available for review prior to entering area(s) of 
contamination. 

 
• The radioactive sources used by the Lead Cascade were controlled and maintained by the Portsmouth 

Gaseous Diffusion Plant source control program. The inspectors identified as a program strength the 
control, testing, and tracking of radioactive sealed sources which included source location(s), date last 
tested, due date for testing, and digital pictures of the actual source. The inspectors verified that the source 
storage locations were as shown in the database. 

 
• The inspectors reviewed assessments and conducted interviews with workers regarding the as low as is 

reasonably achievable (ALARA) program and determined that the ALARA program was appropriately 
implemented to determine the major contributor(s) to exposures and how exposures may be lowered. 
Workers interviewed by the inspectors were aware of the ALARA concepts and the role that both 
management and the workers fulfilled in the implementation of ALARA. 
 

Environmental Protection (88045) 
 
• The inspectors reviewed the changes to the procedures since the previous inspection and determined that 

they were consistent with the requirements of the license. The inspectors also determined that the licensee 
was performing adequate annual audits on the environmental protection program. 

 
• The inspectors reviewed the procedures used for the environmental protection program. The licensee was 

performing tasks related to the environmental protection program in accordance with the current 
procedures. The inspectors reviewed effluent data and determined that the material released to the 
environment was in compliance with environmental discharge limits. 

 
• The inspectors accompanied operators to ensure that they were performing environmental sampling 

consistent with the procedures. No issues were identified. 
 
• The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s procedures for minimizing releases to the environment and 

determined that they were adequate. No issues were identified. 
 

Operator Training (88010) 
 
• The licensee adequately performed initial and refresher training relating to nuclear criticality safety, 

radiation protection, and plant emergencies. 
 
• The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s operator training program through interviews, document review, 

and visual inspection of operations to ensure that the operators were aware of safety controls. No issues 
were identified. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Continued) 
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• Formal training was developed and updated in accordance with the licensee’s procedures by qualified 

instructors. 
 
• The licensee identified operators whose training had expired, and work restrictions were placed on the 

employees until the training had been adequately completed. 
 
• Training material and examinations were current and adequate in evaluating the performance and 

understanding of the operators. 
 
• A functional system was in place to update training requirements and methods based on lessons learned 

and just-in-time training from previous facility events/issues. 
 
• The inspectors reviewed the training program and interviewed operators related to selected IROFS and 

determined that the training was adequate.  
 
Exit Meeting Summary 
 
• The inspection scope and results were summarized on Thursday, October 30, 2008 with members of the 

certificate holder staff. No proprietary information was identified.  
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